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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Ferry Farm house is situated between Bo1inbroke Creek on the east, and Read's 
Cove and Porpoise Creek on the west, near the northern end of the Choptank River 
Bridge, overlooking ~he broad waters of the Choptank and Cambridge beyond. It is 
an early 18th century, frame, gambrel roof dwelling with a large, 20th century, 
gambrel roof wing. 

The old house is three bays long and two bays deep, and built on a brick 
basement. The bricks are large and laid in English bond, the brickwork resembling 
early 18th century work on the Eastern Shore. The walls of the houses are covered 
with plain weatherboard and the windows of the first story have 2/2 sash and louvered 
shutters. Those above have 6/6 sash. Each facade has a central entrance, the south 
entrance with transom. A large 20th century chimney is built onto the west gable 
and another within the east gable. There is a leanto porch on part of the north side. 

The interior presently consists of a central stair hall with a living room on 
the west and dining room and kitchen on the east. The stair is a good, first half 
of the 18th century one, and the east rooms retain some early woodwork. In these 
rooms the major posts protrude from the walls and are encased in fluted pilasters 
of rather crude design, similar to the fluting at White Marshes up river several miles. 

From evidence in the basement, specifically the bases of the original chimneys, 
it is apparent that the east side was a single room and the west side had two rooms 
with corner fireplaces when the house was first built. The change to the present 
floor plan was probably made in the 1940 1 s, when the wing was added. The wing is 
about 1-1/3 times the size of the original house, with dissimilar fenestration. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Ferry Farm house is significant architecturally because it is one of the earliest 
gambrel roof dwellings in the county. It is import~nt for its original first half 
18th century woodwork and original floor plan. The plan is similar to Back Creek 
Mill house, Cecil County. 

Ferry Farm house ranks as the focus of one of the earliest economic enterprises 
in the county, the terminus of a ferry across the Great Choptank River to Dorchester 
County, and what is now the City of Cambridge. 

According to the Rent Rolls of 1708, 11 Bullen 11 was surveyed for 800 acres for 
Henry Bullen in 1659. The property lay on the north side of the Choptank River, 
adjoining the lands of Thomas Read and Read's Creek. According to this tax assessment, 
Henry Bullen owned and possessed 390 acres. Henry had inherited this part of 11 Bullen 11 

through a division of his mother's estate. By 1670 Naomi Mackey had been widowed 
three times in ten years. She made a gift deed of her properties to her four sons, 
Henry Bullen, Thomas (probably Larrimore), and Hezikiah and William Mackey. They 
shared equally in the distribution. 

Henry started selling acreage from 11 Bullen 11 in 1706, when Thomas Barnett 
paid him 10,000 pounds of tobacco for 100 acres along Read's Creek (10/49). The 
following year, he made the first of three sales to Thomas Taylor. The first two were 
for acreage onlY,290 acres in all (11/32) (11/73). In 1709 Bullen sold 130 acres 
to Taylor with houses, outhouses, etc. Taylor immediately sold the entire 250 acres 
to William Troth for blOO. This price would not indicate that there was any substantial 
sort of house on the property. Following Troth's death in 1712, his daughter, Judith, 
the wife of Samuel Dickinson of neighboring 11 Croisadore,'' inherited this part of her 
father's estate. 

It is impossible to say when and by whom, this house was built. Henry Bullen 
was granted a ferry across the Choptank from Bullen's plantation, in 1722. Whether 
he ever ran this ferry is unknown. It is known that a house was built in the town 
of Trappe, early in the 18th century by a member of the Dickinson family and there is 
a resemblance to this house as both had gambrel roofs. We know that the Troth/Dickinson 
families owned this property from 1709 until 1768. At that time, James Dickinson 
sold the tract called "Bullen" and "Bullen's Addition" to William Akers for bl050 current 
money. This considerable price would indicate that the Ferry Farm house was standing 
at this time. We also know from many deeds in which the description includes "on the 
road to Akers Farm, 11 that there is no doubt that William Akers ran the ferry across 
the Choptank River _to Dorchester County. 

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #1. 
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Local tradition has it that he used his home as an inn or ordinary, as well. We do 
know that Akers :,;as a planter and merchant. In 1786 he sold a sloop, "The Mayflower," 
"riding at anchor in the Choptank River, 11 to John and James King (23/136). We also 
know that he increased the size of his property in 1783 by adding 150 acres adjoining 
"my now dwelling plantation" from Thomas Barnett, the heir of his father, who had 
bought this land in 1706 (21/279). 

Akers ran his ferry and other enterprises until the early 19th century. He 
was listed in the 1798 Tax Assessment as owner and occupant of a frame dwelling, 
38 1 X 27'. The kitchen measured 35' X 16'. William Akers is also credited, in 
the 1783 Tax Roll, with 320 acres on the Choptank River and Ferry. The premises 
included a dwelling house, meat house, tobacco house, kitchen, logged dwelling 
(later occupied by his son, Daniel), woods, etc., valued at b827. 

There is no record of the exact date of William Akers' death. Distribution 
of his estate was not made until 1812 (JP B/322). He left his widow, Ann, and 
a son, Daniel. His daughter, Sarah, had married James Saunders, but was deceased 
by this time, a: was his son, Harrison. There were grandchildren bearing the 
name Abbott. 

In 1809 (33/165) William Jenkins paid $5,000 to James Saunders and his wife, 
Sarah Akers Saunders, for two parcels of land. These were incorporated into the 
farm of Alexander Bowdle in 1869 (75/458). 

Bowdle had made his first purchase in the area in 1843, when he bought 107~ 
acres from the widow of John W. Jenkins, Mary Elizabeth, and her new husband, Solomon 
Mullikin, Jr., which they owned by right of inheritance (57/306). He added another 
portion in 1845 (57/392). In 1847 Bowdle married Sarah Emily Kirby, and they made 
the old "Ferry Farm" their home. He left no will, but hers was probated in 1895 
(14/402), and indicated that she had had a home built in the town of Trappe. This 
she left to her son, "who assisted in building my home, 11 and his children. To her 
daughter, Nannie B. Highley, she left her farm in Ferry Neck of 160 acres, and a 
house and lot on the north side of the public road in Ferry Neck. After the natural 
life of her daughter, the propert.Y was to go to her grandson, Alexander Bowdle Highley. 

Highley divided his inherited farm into building lots. By the terms of his 
will (31/386, 1960), a part of the farm, now known as Cambridge Ferry Fann, was 
sold to Dorrance R. Smith and his wife, Betty Ann, in 1963 (390/219). The Smiths 
bought the house "as is, 11 since there had been a fire in the roof. They made the 
necessary repairs and other improvements, so that it is comfortable for modern 
living, yet retains some interesting features of its long history. 
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

Ferry Farm House is situated near the northern end of the 
Choptank River Bridge overlooking the broad waters of the Choptank 
and Cambridge beyond. It is an early 18th century frame, gambrel 
roof dwelling with a large 20th century gambrel roof wing. The 
latter is not to be described herein. 

The old house is three bays long and two bays deep and is built 
upon a brick basement. The bricks are large and laid in English 
bond, the brickwork resembling early 18th century work on the 
Eastern Shore. The walls of the house are covered with plain weat­
herboard and the windows of the first story have 2/2 sash and louvered 
shutters. Those above have 6/6 sash. Each facade has a central 
entrance, the south entrance with transom. A large 20th century 
chimney is built onto the west gable and another within the east 
gable. There is a leanto porch on part of the north side. 

The interior presently consists of a central stair hall with 
a living room on the west and dining room and kitchen on the east. 
The stair is a good first half 18th ceRtury stair, and the east rooms 
retain some early woodwork. 

From evidence in the basement, namely the bases of the original 
chimneys, it is apparent that the east side was a single room and 
the west side had two rooms with corner fireplaces. 

In the east rooms the major posts protrude from the walls and 
are encased in a fluted pilaster of rather crude design similar to 
the fluting of White Marshes up river several miles. 
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

Ferry Farm House is significant architecturally because 
it is one of the earliest gambrel roof dwellings in the 
County. It is important for its original first half 18th 
century woodwork and unusual floor plan. The plan is 
similar to Back Creek Mill House, Cecil County. 
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